
COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS JOURNAL 122  JOURNAL PAGE 292 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JULY 29, 2024 
 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Good evening ladies and gentlemen and welcome to Canton City Council.  

If everyone would please turn your cell phones to vibrate we would appreciate it. With a quorum being present, 

the Chair calls this meeting of Canton City Council to order.  Roll call vote please, Madam Clerk. 

 

ROLL CALL TAKEN BY CLERK WOOD: 

10 COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: (JOHN MARIOL, JAMES BABCOCK, CRYSTAL SMITH, GREG 

HAWK, BRENDA KIMBROUGH, JASON SCAGLIONE, CHRIS SMITH, ROBERT FISHER, RICHARD 

SACCO & FRANK MORRIS)  

  

TEN COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT (MEMBER GIAVASIS AND COOKS ABSENT) 

 

CLERK WOOD:  Ten present, two absent, Madam President.  

 

EXCUSING MEMBERS 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Mr. President, I move we… sus…uh… excuse Members Giavasis and Member Cooks 

from this evening’s meeting.   

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to excuse Members Giavasis and Cooks 

from this meeting. Are there any remarks?... Hearing none, roll call vote please.  

 

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD:  Ten yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: The motion carries and Members Cook and Giavasis are excused from this 

meetings meeting. Tonight’s invocation will be given by Council Member-at-Large, James Babcock. If you’ll 

please stand and remain standing for our Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

The regular meeting of Canton City Council was held on July 29, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. in the Canton City Council 

Chamber.  The roll call was taken (see above) by Clerk of Council, Jill M. Wood.  The invocation was given by 

Council Member-at-Large, James Babcock. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by President Bates Aylward. 

 

AGENDA CORRECTIONS AND CHANGES 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Member Babcock. We are now under Agenda Corrections and 

Changes. Leader Mariol.  

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move to suspend Rule 22A to add second reading Ordinances #27 

through Ordinances #38 to this evening’s agenda.  

 

MEMBER BABCOCK:  Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to suspend Rule 22A to add second readings 

of Ordinances #27 through #38 to this evenings agenda. Are any remarks? Hearing none, roll call vote please. 
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NO REMARKS           ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinances #27 through #38 are now a 

legal part of your agenda.   

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Public Hearings, and we actually have two for this 

evening. Madam Clerk, would you please read Public Hearing #1, by title. 

 

CLERK WOOD: Certainly, one moment. Oh, okay, alright I’m sorry. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s okay. 

 

CLERK WOOD: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1131, DEFINITIONS;  CHAPTER 1198, 

CONDITIONAL USES OF PART ELEVEN PLANNING AND ZONING CODE. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Is there anyone in the audience wishing to speak for or against 

this Ordinance, please step forward. I will repeat, is there… is there anyone in the audience wishing to speak for 

or against this particular Ordinance. Seeing no one step forward, the Chair declares the public hearing over in 

regard to this Ordinance. And the matter now rests in the hands of Council. The Ordinance will follow… follow 

later this evening. Uh… Madam Clerk, Public Hearing #2, please. 

 

CLERK WOOD: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING O#55/77, AS AMENDED, KNOWN AS THE CITY OF 

CANTON ZONING ORDINANCE; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Once again, is there anyone in the audience that wishes to speak 

for or against this Ordinance, please step forward. I will repeat, anyone who would like to speak for or against 

this Ordinance, please come forward. Seeing no one come forward, the Chair declares this public hearing over 

in regards to this matter, as well. And the matter now rests in the hands of Council. And the Ordinance will 

follow later this evening. Thank you. 

OLD BUSINESS 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Old Business, and there is no Old Business for this 

evening. 

PUBLIC SPEAKS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Public Speaks, and we have nine speakers this evening. 

Uh… many of you have been with us before, but for those who haven’t you will have three minutes. You will 

monitor your time on the uh… large screens. And uh… when I call your name, we will ask you to approach the 

podium and give us, for the record, your name and residential address. So, thank you. Our first speaker is David 

Kerestes. Mr. Keretes are you here? There you are, thank you.  

 

DAVID KERESTES: My name is David Kerestes. I live at 626 Walnut Ave. I’m here tonight to speak of the 

No Beers Act of 2002. This was to discourage federal managers and supervisors from engaging in unlawful 

discrimination and retaliation. I believe that’s happened to me many times. I got evicted from Matt Shurin’s 
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place of uh… ownership. Related to Kirk Schuring under a covid violation, a monetary violation. Tonight I’m 

here about Canton. This Antonio Davis this guys is an ice dealer over here and he’s working on this house and 

he’s got a permit for concrete and block. And I go in there and they tell me he has a permit, but I don’t see a 

footer anywhere. And uh… then they’re going to call the cops on me when I’m asking questions. And then I’m 

wondering when he’s got these windows here, ten new windows. Those are about five hundred dollars a piece at 

the at the bank, but there’s nobody taking any notice of that, nor the new roof,  and the footer missing I really 

had concerns. That point I’m showing them pictures of the wiring hanging. They got no interior permits 

whatsoever, but you see insulation and see drywall and a wire hanging there with no junction box. Uh… that 

quite obscured when they have an inspector. They should’ve been there for a footer long ago. And then I’m 

trying to show them this stuff, and they’re going to call the cops on me… it ain’t looking so good. That would 

bring me to the Hot Coffee House where you have a junction box wire up here right over a shower unit. When I 

took that to them last year I got in trouble. Brings me to 25th St. where I got evicted trying to talk about the uh… 

uh… I believe it was the Hunter uh… grant money being robbed out there by that lawyer. Mr. Babcock said it 

was a minor violation. Well that was a three phase wire hooked up to a two phase wire in the ground… not 

connected, which was another fire hazard. All these places are inspected uh… they’re all federal and state 

funded. And quite frankly under federal and state funding uh… you are not allowed to violate federal law, state 

law, or city law. So how they doing crack over there at the freaking Downtowner. Smoking their bubble, selling 

their crack in a federal place… were we’re place paying for the funding…for these drug dealers. That brings me 

to, how did that drug dealer know that I was at the Building Department, contact me eight hours later wanting to 

meet and talk to me man to man. Well I don’t think an ice dealer robbing everybody is a man. Thank you, but 

he is a veteran. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mr. Kerestes. Our next speaker is… I believe I’m saying this… 

Reverend Doctor Joyce Penfield? Am I saying that correct… thank you  ma’am. If you would approach and 

please give us your name and residential address.   

 

REV. DR. JOYCE PENFIELD: Good evening, uh… Madam President and Council Members. My address is 

247 Portage Lakes Dr., Coventry Township. And I do services at St. Paul’s, one block from here, quite often… 

Episcopal Church. Uh… I’m here to… you have a resolution before for a ceasefire and the conflict that’s going 

on uh… in between Israel and Palestinians. And I’m here to ask you to support that resolution. Uh… this is a 

historic moment, it’s a moment which unfortunately the world and those with lots of technology, are watching 

violence being lived streamed. And humanitarian violations that we’ve never seen in such abundance all at 

once. This conflict needs to be stopped. The violence needs to be stopped we need to immediately have a 

permanent ceasefire so that we can work towards sides figuring out things together. Uh… the context of the 

violence comes from settler colonialism inherited by many people and it’s in a situation now that our own 

humanity and those of us watching also are… are embroiled in this. We are a part of this. What could Canton do 

of seventy thousand people so far away with something? Perhaps very little, but perhaps a lot. It has to do with 

our own souls and how we speak for humanity. (Applause) And how we recognize what needs to be changed. 

There’s too much dying. There’s Israeli soldiers who are dying. There’s thousands and thousands of children 

are dying. Humanitarian violations that have been noted by uh… B’Tselem, Human Rights Organization in 

Israel and also in uh… throughout the world, Amnesty International. Uh… the… law… the resolution as I 

understand would demand an immediate and sustained uh… ceasefire so that something can start to go forward 

to build life because right now what is happening is death. Death and destruction. Uh… the resolution asked for 

an immediate release of all hosta… all Israeli hostages and all of Palestinian hostages… uh prisoners who have 

been detained. Up to fifteen thousand with no charges currently. Uh… for a restoring (inaudible) funding so 

that health care can be created and provided to those people who are suffering so greatly from the violence from 

the… bri… uh… from the lack of water… lack of… and … and polio is now striking. It’s found in the water 

uh… within Gaza…uh… and also… uh… and ending the blockade. Uh… this is a big step, small step, great 
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step so that we can show our humanitarian understanding of human beings our brothers and sisters on all sides, 

to get the violence stopped. Violence only begets more violence as King taught us. We can’t go anywhere until 

we get this stopped. So I urge you to search your souls and… (Buzzer), vote fight for human rights, vote for 

humanity, for all signs… 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: And your time is up ma’am. Thank you very much… (Applause) 

 

REV. DR. JOYCE PENFIELD: …I thank you for the opportunity. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Our next speaker is Miss Kim Bell. Miss Bell. 

 

KIM BELL: Kimberly Bell, 1733 Morris Ave. I gave ya’ll a survey last week, and I want to give it to you so 

you can look over… cause I did some of it. I’ll do some more of it tomorrow about the jobs programs. Me and 

uh.. Councilman Mariol has been talking about, but before I get into that… I want… I want… I want to hit on a 

few things. Uh… first I want to… uh give a shout out to Ida Freeman. A good woman. I didn’t really have 

any… interference with her anything, but she was good person. Uh… and then now the Sonya Massey murder. I 

mean Frank Tyson’s murder’s been… what over one hundred days now. And nobody has said anything else 

other than what they said, but what can possible… what can we be possible waiting on. It was… these… that 

those two officers and that bartender, he… they killed this man with their bare hands and their body weight. I 

don’t know how it works… uh… Jason and Kristen Bates, how to write and opinion. I’m just a Paralegal from 

Stark State, but I know how to write and opinion. Or… or the change of a revised ca… code or create a law for 

these officers not to use their (speaker turns from microphone to speak) immunity in situations like Frank 

Tyson and Sonya Massey. Which he’s not going to be able to use, he’s going to prison for the rest of his life for 

death penalty hopefully. If you guys can help, sit down with Frank Frocho (Forchione)… Judge Polus, Charles 

Brown, and some of you other members up here, to figure out a way to… to… to… write an opinion to the 

courts or… or lawmakers to… to… to…  make… create laws for these officers not to use their qualified 

immunity. The letter you have is a letter I made sure I was trying to get it to every NFL player in their 

organizations. Because… hoping the letter would fall in the hands of the right person, it would… to stop the 

event of the Hall of Fame this week. It may or may not work, but this… this… at this point we are desperate 

and we are tired. And we are trying to save another family from getting a phone call saying their family member 

has been killed by a Canton Police Officer. I had a recent incident, but I… I… I you know I trust… I trust Jason 

and I trust Chief Gabbard so, but I have another incident over the Greek Fest weekend with Officer Mark Diels. 

I’ll discuss at a later time, but please Kristen, Jason get with Judge Frocho (Forchione)… bring Charles Brown 

and Judge Polus out of retirement and try to write something… write an opinion to the courts or… (Buzzer) … 

revised code for these officers to not use QI.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Miss Bell. (Applause) Our next speaker is Mr. Hassan 

Muheisen.  

 

HASAN MUHEISEN: As-salamu alaykum. Ladies and gentlemen, I just want to show you this is the 

Palestinian map before 1948. That here, Tel Aviv, Jaffa Jerusalem and here is Reza. You see like 1937, the 

population of the Palestinian Muslim and Christians used to 97% of the population. The Jews used to be 3% 

where they used to be only on around Jerusalem like small sector give them the right to live in Jerusalem in 

Jaffa, Tel Aviv and in (inaudible). You see all these cities and villages, about five hundred fifty cities and 

villages being destroyed. And force the people to leave their homeland. And some of them went to the refugees 

(inaudible) to Gaza. Some of them went to refugee camps in West Bank and Jerusalem. Some of them went to 

uh… Lebanon. Some of them to Seria, some of them to Jordan, some of them like all over the world. And 

especially like we have in the United States, over maybe uh… five hundred thousand uh… Palestinians live in 
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the uh… United States. And that’s what I want to say that we need some considerations for the Palestinians. 

These are human beings that they left their homes and they want to go back by the help of the international 

community. Uh…we need Canton City Council to help achieve peace in Palestine. To make the Holy Land as a 

holy place for all peace lovers. Please vote yes ceasefire, yes for peace. Not for genocide in Gaza and West 

Bank and Jerusalem. Not for the humani… the dehumani…nizing the people of Palestine in prison and just 

some maybe in jail and prison. Vote for the freedom of Palestine and vote for the long and lasting peace. Ladies 

and Gentleman, ceasefire is crucial to the children of Palestine. The Palestinians are in need of your support. 

The support that would give hope for all the countries of the Middle East. If the Palestinians are not free, then 

no one will be free. (Applause)  No to genocide, no to war criminals, we hope you will side with the people 

who chanted “Free, free Palestine,” from this Chamber, from the Canton City Council meeting we are to… 

(Buzzer)  …the humanity, justice, and free Palestine. (Applause) Thank you, very much. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Our next speaker is Abdallah Masri. Mr. Masri. 

 

ABDALLAH MASRI: Good evening, thank you again for the venue… uh… Adallah Masri 3892, Mt. Pleasant 

St. NW. Thank you again for giving us the venue to educate and putting forward our plight and this actually 

global crisis and talk about it on this venue. I wish… I wanted to start with reminding everyone, Ilan Pappe` 

he’s a famous Israeli historian wrote a book recently, it’s called  “On Palestine.” He says a few words in the 

beginning about one of the major problems of the Palestinian cause is they will try and sell it as a complicated 

cause where matter of fact it’s really really simple. There was a land and someone else stole it. (Applause) 

That’s as simple as that. Common thieves stole the land so… for sure you, we did not choose to be colonized or 

occupied. We certainly did not choose who occupies us. And it’s really… intuitive that we resist occupied… 

occupation. And we, you know, we resist people trying to steal our homes right? Uh… so… uh… going back to 

what’s happening in the current days, I would ask everybody to please educate yourself. Read near history, read 

near facts and try to get out of your comfort zone and reeducate yourself on this. Recently Polio, which has been 

almost eradicated, has been in… was… uh… announced to be endemic in Gaza. Poliomyelitis, you remember 

your school kid who has a crocked leg and really bad deformities has a hard time walking. Polio is coming back 

because of poor sanitation in Gaza among the killing. And it’s not going to stop at any border or any barbwire. 

The last point I would like to bring is the last available martyr list or victim list was only released in November. 

And I did uh… I did open that list and search for my name and there is a person who has both my first and last, 

Abdallah Masri. There are one hundred and sixty-five people who were killed that shared my first name and 

who there is one… five people who shared my wife’s name. That’s until November 8th and there’s seventy-five 

people who shared my last name. So, this this real for us. This is not a fanatic show. We are not, you know… 

we’re not embarking on a woke trend to get likes and trends and you know shares. This is real for us. So, I ask 

you again to stand on the right side of history and vote for a Ceasefire Resolution. It’s a small step, but we need 

to get the word out to most people. Free Palestine. (Buzzer) (Applause) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Sorry… Thank you, Mr. Masri. Our next speaker is Mr. Eric Resnick.  

 

ERIC RESNICK: Eric Resnick, 1828 Grace Ave NE. Madam President, Leader, Members… commentator 

Caitlin Johnstone reminds us that Gaza is the single defining feature of this political moment in the United 

States. She continues that an actual genocide is scheduled to continue and everyone is meant to just ignore it. As 

though it is some small insignificant quivel.  Genocide is just plain evil. And even if small gestures are outside 

of what you are willing to do to show where you… where your redlines are, then it no longer makes sense for 

you to talk about evil. Or any other moral dist.. distinction. There’s a leader framing what’s happening at the 

hands of the Zionist state in Gaza. All moral judgements that come before you in this Chamber, become 

nonsensical. I want to thank Member Morris for agreeing to put the resolution on the agenda tonight and also 

Members Giavasis, Crystal Smith, Chris Smith, Cooks and Sacco who joined him in support of it as far back as 
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March. Things have gotten a lot worse in Gaza since them and there have been rulings by the International 

Court of Justice, the Prosecutor of the International Criminal Court and the United Nations General Assembly 

since then. All of them implement… implicating the Zionist state in war crimes and more likely than not 

genocide. What kind of person would oppose a ceasefire that would stop mass slaughter and genocide, even if 

it’s just stating support for it out loud. What kind of person would do that? How you feel about people being 

slaughtered on the other side of the world makes its way into how you feel about marginal people here in our 

community. (Applause) And tonight you have a chance to show you’re better angels in your willingness to do 

the right thing. I have one more request. Please share the rational for your vote, especially if you vote no. This 

community needs to hear how its elected leaders feel about good and evil. Who displays moral character and 

who doesn’t. Don’t hide behind your position… speak up. We want to know what you’re thinking. I hope my 

confidence… that in the end you will do the right thing is well founded. As I look around though I see the two 

yes votes for this resolution are not here. And I’m hoping that two others of you will step up and do the right 

thing.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. (Applause) Our next speaker is Mr. Ahmed Cheema. Mr. 

Cheema. 

 

AHMED CHEEMA: Ahmed Cheema, 5155 Foxchase Ave NW Canton. Honorable Mem… Members of City 

Council and citizens of Canton, I greet you with peace, As-salamu alaykum. I had the opportunity to share facts 

about the ongoing genocide in Gaza in this Council Chamber for over six months now. Facts that are verifiable 

by anyone with a basic understanding of critical thinking and a smidgen of humanity. Facts, not political 

propaganda from a depraved foreign opportunist and war criminal who played many of the law makers in the 

U.S. Congress as his useful idiots. Facts, that have led the International Court of Justice, ICJ and International 

Criminal Court, ICC… to their rulings against the criminals and mass murderers masquerading as dignified 

political leaders. The ICJ is the highest court within the United Nations that deals with legal disputes between 

states and requests for advisory opinions… advisory legal opinions. The ICC is the highest International 

Criminal Court that focuses on holding individuals accountable for serious… violations of international 

criminal law such as genocides and crimes against humanity. The ICJ and ICC are not kangaroo courts. 

Netanyahu wants the world to believe he will create monolith of peace and stability on a foundation of 

systematic dispossession, illegal occupation, and ethnic cleansing. The American Revolutionary War and 

several other struggles in human history have shown that people… when people are occupied, resistance is 

justified. (Applause) I want to thank… I want to thank members of this Council, two of whom are missing 

tonight, who have shown support on this issue and made an effort to research and find the truth for themselves. 

I’m especially thankful to the Council Members that brought the Gaza Ceasefire Resolution… up for a vote 

today. Symbolic as it may be, This is not merely a vote, it is a moral crossroads. The choice before you is stark. 

To embrace the principles of compassion and life, or to turn away from them. History will judge your actions, 

but more importantly, your conscience will. I trust that you will choose wisely. Thank you. (Applause) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Mr. Cheema. Our next speaker Miss Skylark Bruce. 

 

SKYLARK BRUCE: My name is Skylark Bruce and I live at 2216 Bolinger Ave NE. Rest in power Ms. Ida 

Ross Freeman. She rarely missed a Council meeting or an opportunity to speak up for justice for black people. 

Thank you to Council Member Morris and those accompanying him for putting their names on a Gaza Ceasefire 

Resolution to be voted on today. As you have been hearing from your community for five long months. And as 

the people of Gaza have endured for nine much longer months, plus or minus seventy-five years. It is important 

that we do not look away. It is critical that ordinary people who think of ourselves as good, raise our voices 

against senseless slaughter of innocent people. This matters rather it happens in Gaza, Congo, Yemen, or right 

here in the streets of Canton. Regardless of how the vote goes this… during this meeting,  I want you to ask 
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yourselves why it took five months to get here. Why did it take twenty or so City Council meetings even to get 

a vote on the floor for an informal resolution. It could be… it could be that you love seeing our pretty faces and 

hearing our resident voices just that much, but it’s a lot more likely that there are other reasons for dragging 

your feet. I don’t think it was your goal to be the very last Council of a decent size city in Ohio to vote on a 

Gaza Ceasefire Resolution. Or the only one potentially to vote no, but whatever it is you need to get your stuff 

together because the blank looks and perpetual silence from leadership does affect the lives of people here in 

Canton. When will the family of Frank Tyson get answers? It has been three and a half very long months. Three 

and a half months of silence from city leadership. If it was your family member, your friend, your neighbor, 

brutally snatched from you by murderous city employees, that would not be an acceptable wait time. If the 

Tyson’s have to wait this long and longer, I wish upon those of you who are doing absolutely nothing or even 

worse, something new. I hope that injustice feels like bed bugs to you. I hope your falling asleep takes hours 

because every tiny movement jolts you awake. I hope you rise in the morning to shake in justice out of your 

sheets and clothes. I hope the panic of trying to deal with this daily consumes your life. I hope you feel the 

embarrassment of the marks of injustice on your skin in places other people can’t see. If you’re not pushing for 

justice where it matters, I hope you never get comfortable rest again. Every moment the Tysons must wait for 

justice should be miserable for you too, but if you break open your hardened hearts and start to speak out… I 

wish you all the deep restful sleep and peace of mind. Vote yes to call for a cea… permanent ceasefire in Gaza, 

Free Palestine, and justice for Frank Tyson. (Applause) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Miss Bruce. Our last speaker is Andie Edwards. And if you 

could approach and give us your name and residential address, please. 

 

ANDIE EDWARDS: I also have some photos that I printed out to be passed around for the Council. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Uh… one of our… our folks will come and get those. 

 

ANDIE EDWARDS: Okay. My name is Andie Edwards and I live at 6360 Apple St. For the last nine months 

I’ve been online following this genocide from the stories on the ground in Palestine. I have seen the bombshells 

on the streets of Gaza with U.S.A. D.O.D. stamped on them. I watched people die in real time in front of my 

eyes. I want to share with you the story that sticks with me the most. The image that will be burned into my 

mind for the rest of my life. There was a seven year old little girl who escaped four bombings, with her mother, 

father, and two sisters. One of whom was only year and a half old. I say “was” because after the fifth bombing 

this girl survived, she found her sixteen month old baby sister beheaded in the rubble of the building they were 

hiding in. She said to the people who found her, “I wish for death after finding my baby sister like that.” This is 

what you’re voting on tonight. I know some of you profess faith. I’m a person of faith too. In Matthew 18:14 

Jesus says “ It is not the will of your Father who is in heaven that one of these little ones should perish.” What 

do you think Jesus would say to that little girl who found her little sister. What would you say to her. I read the 

other day that some are calling this genocide, self-defense. Let me tell you the truth I’ve seen with my own 

eyes, Israel is bombing humanitarian aid assistance and refugee camps and humanitarian safe zones. There is no 

one to defend themselves against. They’re brutally massacring innocent civilians to the streets day after day 

with no end in sight. So when you vote… tonight, I want you to think of these children. I want them in your 

mind along with the faces of every child you have ever loved. I want their eyes seared into you mind, the way 

they are into mine. Listen to your constituents, call the genocide, genocide. Calling this word genocide, is the 

very least you can do. Calling it what is and saying it has to stop is the very least… that you can do. And if you 

can’t find it within yourself to do that I hope you spend a long the asking yourself why. I hope it doesn’t let you 

sleep. I hope it keeps you up at night in your safe, warm, comfortable bed with you living family surrounding 

you. There’s a quote often attributed to Dante’s Inferno that says “The darkest places in hell are reserved for 
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those who maintain their neutrality in times of moral crisis.” Now is your chance… (buzzer)… to vote for the 

ceasefire. Free Palestine.  (Applause) 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank… thank you. Okay, thank you to our speakers. 

 

INFORMAL RESOLUTIONS 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under uh… Informal Resolutions, which we have been 

discussing. We have one for this evening. Madam Clerk, will you please read Informal Resolution #1 by title. 

 

1. COUNCIL MEMBERS CHRIS SMITH, RICHARD SACCO, AND FRANK MORRIS: REQ 

ADOPTION OF GAZA CEASEFIRE RESOLUTION. – FAILED 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Leader Mariol.   

 

MEMBER MARIOL:  Madam President, I move we adopt Informal Resolution #1. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK:  Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Informal Resolution #1.  Are there 

any remarks under this Resolution?  

 

MEMBER MORRIS: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Oh… yes Member Morris. 

 

MEMBER MORRIS: May we have that… may we have that vote by roll call please? 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes. Just give me a moment so she can…okay. Alright, any other remarks? 

Okay… hearing none, then by roll call vote, would you please uh… do that Madam Clerk. 

 

NO REMARKS     ROLL CALL  3 YEAS, 1 ABSTENTION, 6 NAYS 

      (MEMBER CRYSTAL SMITH ABSTAINED; 

MEMBERS MARIOL, BABCOCK, HAWK, KIMBROUGH, SCAGLIONE, AND FISHER VOTED NAY) 

 

CLERK WOOD: That’s three yeas, six nays, and one abstention, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Madam Clerk. Uh… the motion has failed and Informal 

Resolution #1 has not been adopted. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Communications. And let us… let the journal show that 

all Communications are received as read.  

 

NOTE: ALL COMMUNICATIONS, WHICH FOLLOW, LISTED BY AGENDA TITLE, ARE ON FILE  

IN THEIR ENTIRETY, IN THE COUNCIL OFFICE WITH THE AGENDA ITEMS FILE DATED JULY 

29, 2024. 
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2. RPT OF DEPOSITS AND PAY-INS TO AMBULANCE LOCK BOX FOR JUNE, 2024. - CHIEF 

BENNETT 

3. REQ NEW C1 LIQUOR PERMIT FOR AJANEL CONVENIENT MARKET LLC DBA MI 

BANDERA GUATEMALA @ 921 12TH ST. NW, (WARD 7). - LIQUOR CONTROL DIV 

4. REQ LEG. FOR DELINQUENT PROPERTY ACQUISTION AND IMPROVEMENT. - MAJORITY 

LEADER MARIOL AND MAYOR SHERER  

5. REQ LEG. FOR CLIMATE ACTION AND SUSTAINABILITY PLAN. - MAJORITY LEADER 

JOHN MARIOL, COUNCIL MEMBERS ROBERT FISHER, RICHARD SACCO, BRENDA 

KIMBROUGH, CRYSTAL SMITH 

6. REQ LEG. FOR CIVIC CENTER PROPERTY AND OWNERSHIP. - MAYOR SHERER  

7. ESTABLISH COD ORD WITHIN CHPT 105, PRICING AS FAIR MRKT VALUE; EMERGENCY. - 

MAJORITY LEADER MARIOL AND MAYOR SHERER  

8. REQ TO AMEND O#40/2000, EXHIBIT A. - SAFETY DIRECTOR PERRY 

9. REQ LEG. FOR TASERS FOR POLICE. - SAFETY DIRECTOR PERRY 

10. REQ LEG. FOR 2024 OFFICE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES, STATE OF OHIO VIOLENT 

CRIME REDUCTION GRANT. - SAFETY DIRECTOR PERRY 

11. REQ LEG. FOR 9TH ST. SW BRIDGE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT, G. P. 1298, PID 112849 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONTACT AMEND NO. 1. - SERVICE DIRECTOR HIGHMAN  

12. REQ LEG. FOR I-77 SANITARY SEWER REHAB, GP 1455 DESIGN. - SERVICE DIRECTOR 

HIGHMAN 

13. REQ LEG. FOR NORTHEAST WATER TREATMENT PLANT DRIVEWAY RE-ALIGNMENT 

PROJECT. - SERVICE DIRECTOR HIGHMAN  

14. COMPARATIVE RPT OF CASH RECEIPTS AS OF 6/30/24. - TREASURER PEREZ 

15. RPTS OF BANK RECONCILIATIONS AND OUTSTANDING INVESTMENTS AS OF 6/28/24. - 

TREASURER PEREZ 

16. RPT OF PARKING METER REVENUE FOR 6/28/24. - TREASURER PEREZ 

ORDINANCES AND FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR FIRST READING 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Ordinances, and Formal Resolutions for their first 

reading. Madam Clerk, would you please begin with Ordinance #17. 

 

NOTE: PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD CALLED UPON CLERK WOOD TO READ ORDINANCES #17 

THROUGH #26 FOR THEIR FIRST READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

O#17.    (1ST RDG) A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STATEMENT OF SERVICES TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE PROPERTY OWNERS IN THE CANTON SERVICE CENTER – 
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30TH ST. NE – 2024 ANNEXATION AREA, THE APPROXIMATE DATE SERVICES 

WILL BE PROVIDED, PROCEDURE TO RECONCILE INCOMPATIBLE ZONING 

USES UPON ITS BEING ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF CANTON, OHIO; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 Referred to Annexation Committee 

 

O#18.  (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY ($22,318.86 SUPP APPROP FR 

UNAPPROP BAL OF 2792 701001 RECOVERY COURT ATP FUND - OTHER TO 

2792 701001 611.20 SALARY/WAGES – PERSONNEL - $17,750.00; TO 2792 701001 

621.51 OPERS – PERSONNEL - $2,485.00; TO  2792 701001 621.63 WORKERS’ 

COMP – PERSONNEL. - $550.25; TO 2792 701001 621.65 MEDICARE – 

PERSONNEL - $257.38; TO 2792 701001 COMP ABSENCE – PERSONNEL - 

$1,276.23) 

 Referred to Finance Committee 

 

O#19.  (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY ($7,391.64 SUPP APPROP FR 

UNAPPROP BAL OF 2792 RECOVERY COURT ATP FUND TO 2792 701001 

RECOVERY COURT ATP – OTHER) 

 Referred to Finance Committee 

 

O#20.  (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO SIGN A PETITION FOR ANNEXATION FOR PARCEL NOS. 5200863 

AND 10010986; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY. 

 Referred to Annexation Committee 

 

O#21.  (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE 

TO ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD, AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR 

THE PROCUREMENT OF ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT NEEDED FOR THE WRF 

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT PROJECT; AMENDING 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO 

BE AN EMERGENCY ($5,6000,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 5413 

SEWER REPLACEMENT FUND TO 5413 206053 WRF ELECTRICAL 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT – OTHER) 

Referred to Finance Committee 

 

O#22.  (1ST RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SAFETY TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENT FOR AND ACCEPT $4,000 IN GRANT 

FUNDS FOR WALMART’S 2024 SPARK GOOD LOCAL GRANTS FOR THE 

CANTON POLICE DEPARTMENT; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

NO. 61/2024 AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY ($4,000.00 

SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL 1001 GENERAL OPERATING FUND TO 1001 

102001 POLICE ADMIN - OTHER) 



COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS JOURNAL 122  JOURNAL PAGE 302 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING JULY 29, 2024 
 

 Referred to Finance Committee 

 

O#23.  (1ST RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 134/2024 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND DELCARING THE SAME TO 

BE AN EMERGENCY ($80,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 2314 

INFANT MORTALITY REDUCTION FUND TO 2314 301001 INFANT MORTALITY 

REDUCTION – 700 OTHER DIRECT COSTS) 

 Referred to Finance Committee 

 

O#24.  (1ST RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 135/2024 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND DELCARING THE SAME TO 

BE AN EMERGENCY ($50,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 2324 

NALOXONE ACCESS GRAND FUND TO 2324 NALOXONE ACCESS GRANT 

FUND – 700 OTHER DIRECT COSTS; $25,000.00 SUPP APPROP FR UNAPPROP 

BAL OF 2320 NURSING CLINIC ACTIVITY FUND TO 2320 303002 TRAVEL 

CLINIC – 700 OTHER DIRECT COSTS) 

 Referred to Finance Committee 

 

O#25.  (1ST RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 136/2024 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO TERMINATE: THE 

CANTON MEMORIAL CIVIC CENTER SUBLEASE AGREEMENT WITH ARTS IN 

STARK (AIS); ENTER INTO AN OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT WITH AIS; AND TAKE ANY NECESSARY STEPS AND ENTER 

INTO ALL AGREEMENTS NECESSARY TO ACOMPLISH THE SAME; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 Referred to Public Property Capital Improvement and Finance Committees 

 

O#26.  (1ST RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 137/2024 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO TERMINATE: THE LEASE 

AGREEMENT WITH THE STARK COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS (SCBCC) FOR THE LAND WHICH HOUSES THE CANTON 

MEMORIAL CIVIC CENTER; ENTER INTO A DONATION AGREEMENT WITH 

THE SCBCC FOR PARCEL 10004949; AND TAKE ANY STEPS AND ENTER INTO 

ALL AGREEMENTS NECESSARY TO ACCOMPLISH THE SAME; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 Referred to Public Property Capital Improvement and Finance Committees 

 

CLERK WOODS: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Madam Clerk. At this time the Chair would declare an in-house 

recess for the Finance and Personnel Committees (Should have said Finance and Public Property Capital 

Improvement Committees) to meet in regard to Ordinances #23 through #26 on your agenda this evening.  You 

are now in recess. 
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(COUNCIL RECESSED AT 7:42 PM FOR THE FINANCE AND PUBLIC PROPERTY CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEES TO MEET IN REGARDS TO O#23 through #26; RECONVENED AT 

7:49 PM)  

 

CLERK WOOD: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Madam Clerk. Council is now reconvening after the recess, 

Leader.  

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we suspend Rule 22A to place Ordinances #23 through #26 

back on this evening’s agenda.   

 

MEMBER BABCOCK:  Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to suspend Rule 22A to place Ordinances 

#23 through 26 back on this evening’s agenda.  Are there any remarks? …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinances #23 through #26 are now a 

legal part of your agenda.  Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President… I move we suspend Statutory Rules on Ordinance #23. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: #23 through #26? 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Uh… sorry… excuse me… #23 through #26. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. It’s moved and seconded to suspend the Statutory Rules on 

Ordinances #23 through #26.  Are there any remarks? …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS       ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

         

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. You’ve heard the three readings. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #23. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 
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PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #23.  Are there 

any remarks?  …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS       ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

                 #23 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 134/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #23 has been adopted. 

Leader. 

      

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #24. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #24.  Are there 

any remarks under this Ordinance?  …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS       ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

      #24 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 135/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #24 has been adopted. 

Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #25. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #25.  Are there 

any remarks under this Ordinance?  …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

       #25 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 136/2024 
 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #25 has been adopted. 

Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #26. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #26.  Are there 

any remarks under this Ordinance?  …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 
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NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

       #26 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 137/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #26 has been adopted. 

 

ORDINANCES & FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR SECOND READING 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their Second 

Reading.  Madam Clerk would you please begin with Ordinance #27. 

 

NOTE: PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD CALLED UPON CLERK WOOD TO READ ORDINANCES #27 

THROUGH#38 FOR THEIR SECOND READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW, AS 

FOLLOWS (O#37 AND O#38 ADOPTED):  

 

O#27.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF PART OF 

OUTLOT 374 AND PART OF OUTLOT 375; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE 

AN EMERGENCY 

 

O#28.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 17536 

THRU 17548, LOTS 18139 THRU 18146, PART OF LOT 18138 AND PART OF LOT 

18147 AND LOTS 30065 THRU 30067; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN 

EMERGENCY 

 

O#29.    (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY ($30,274.21 SUPP APPROP FR 

UNAPPROP BAL OF 1155 NIP ACQUISITION DEMO FUND TO 1155 101501 

CODE ENFORCEMENT ADMIN – OTHER; $180,577.21 INTER-FUND ADV 

REPAYMENT FR1155 NIP ACQUISITION FUND – ADVANCE REPAYMENT TO 

1001 GENERAL OPERATING FUND – ADVANCE DUE OTHER FUND)  

  

O#30.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 151, EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS OF 

TITLE FIVE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE OF THE CANTON CODIFIED 

ORDINANACES 

 

O#31.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EDITING AND INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 

ORDINANCES AS PARTS OF THE VARIOUS COMPONENT CODES OF THE 

CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF CANTON, OHIO; AND DELCARING THE SAME TO 

BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

O#32.  (2ND RDG) A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LAW DIRECTOR TO DISTRIBUTE FREE 

OF CHARGE TO PUBLIC OFFICALS AND PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS COPIES OF 

THE 2024 SUPPLEMENT TO THE CANTON CODIFIED ORDINANCES; TO AFFIX 

PRICE FOR THE SALE OF SAME; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN 

EMERGENCY 
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O#33.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF CHAPTER 1501, GENERAL 

PROVISIONS, CHAPTER 1507, INSPECTION FEES, CHAPTER 1509, 

ABOVEGROUND AND UNDERGROUND TANK STORAGE, CHAPTER 1511, 

PERMIT FEES AND CHAPTER 1513, RECREATIONAL FIRES OF PART FIFTEEN, 

FIRE PREVENTION CODE OF THE CANTON CODIFIED ORDINANCES  

 

O#34.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO 

HIRE AN ADDITIONAL CHIEF CHEMIST WITHIN THE WATER DEPARTMENT 

UNTIL THE RETIREMENT OF THE CURRENT CHIEF CHEMIST FOR TRAINING 

PURPOSES; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

O#35.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO: FILE ANY ACTION PLAN/ACTION PLAN AMENDMENTS WITH 

THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT IN ORDER 

TO IMPLEMENT THE HOME-ARP PROGRAM, ENTER INTO ALL CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY FOR THE TIMELY EXPENDITURE OF THE FUNDS AND TO 

ENTER INTO ALL CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO ALLOW FOR THE EFFECTIVE 

OPERATION OF THE PROGRAMS DURING THE GRANT PERIOD USING ALL 

PROCUREMENT PROCESSES AUTHORIZED IN THE CANTON CODIFIED 

ORDINANCES OR IN THE OHIO REVISED CODE; AND DECLARING THE SAME 

TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

O#36.  (2ND RDG) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

SERVICE TO: ENTER INTO CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 WITH THAYER POWER 

AND COMMUNICATION IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $740,000 FOR THE 

CITY/COUNTY FIBER NETWORK PROJECT; ENTER INTO CONTRACT 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH THE BOARD OF STARK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

FOR ADDITIONS NEEDED FOR THEIR PORTION OF THE PROJECT AND TO 

MOVE THE CONSTRUCTION COSTS/OWNERSHIP OF THE FIBER LEADING TO 

THE STARK COUNTY JAIL FROM THE COUNTY TO THE CITY; ENTER INTO A 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR FIBER RELATED GIS SERVICES; 

AND ENTER INTO ALL CONTRACTS NEEDED FOR RAILROAD LICENSE FEES, 

EASEMENTS, ETC. FOR THE PROJECT; AUTHORIZES THE AUDITOR TO PAY 

ALL MORAL OBLIGATIONS NEEDED FOR THIS PROJECT THAT WERE A 

RESULT OF THE ABOVE CHANGE ORDER, AMENDMENT, AND/OR RAILROAD 

AGREEMENTS; AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY ($1,800,000.00 SUPP APPROP 

FR UNAPPROP BAL OF 2175 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IMP. FUND TO 2175 

202003 FIBER PROJECT - OTHER) 

 

O#37.  (2ND RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 138/2024 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO CERTIFY TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR UNPAID 

AND DELINQUENT CHARGES FOR SERVICES PERFORMED BY AND/OR ON 

BEHALF OF THE CITY OF CANTON BUILDING AND CODE DEPARTMENT FOR 
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BOARD UP/CLEAN UP/ DEMOLITION CHARGES; AND DECLARING THE SAME 

TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

O#38.  (2ND RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 139/2024 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

THE AUDITOR TO RENAME AND ESTABLISH THE 4531 18TH STR SW STORM 

SEWER CIPP FUND;AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 61/2024; 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO 

ADVERTISE, RECEIVE BIDS, AWARD AND ENTER INTO CONTRACT FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE OF THE CHERRY STREETSCAPE TUSC TO 2ND NE, 

GP 1427 PROJECT; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

  

CLERK WOOD:  Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we suspend Rules for Ordinances #37 and #38.   

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s moved and seconded to suspend the Statutory Rules on Ordinances #37 

and #38. Are there any remarks? …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion has carried. You’ve heard the three readings, 

Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #37. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #37.  Are there 

any remarks under this Ordinance?  …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 9 YEAS, 1 ABSTAIN 

                   (MEMBER MARIOL ABSTAINED) 

 

CLERK WOOD: Nine yeas, one abstention, Madam President. 

 

       #37 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 138/2024 
 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #37 has been adopted. 

Leader. 
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MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #38. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #38.  Are there 

any remarks?  …Hearing none, roll call vote, please. 

 

NO REMARKS                             ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

       #38 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 139/2024 
 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #38 has been adopted. 

 

 ORDINANCES & FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR THIRD AND FINAL READING 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Third… Ordinances and Formal Resolutions for their 

Third Final Reading and vote. Madam Clerk, would you please begin with Ordinance #39.  

 

NOTE: PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD CALLED UPON CLERK WOOD TO READ THE FOLLOWING 

ORDINANCES #39 THROUGH #46 FOR THEIR THIRD READING BY TITLE AS REQUIRED BY 

STATE LAW, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

O#39.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 140/2024 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

ORDINANCES NO. 282/2022 AND 283/2022; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE TO AMEND THE EXISTING TIF 

COOPERATIVE DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH CANTON COMMERCE 

DEVELOPMENT, LLC; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD:  Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #39. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #39. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President.  

       #39 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 140/2024 
 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and  Ordinance #39 is adopted. Ordinance 

#40, please Madam Clerk. 
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O#40.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 141/2024 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

CHAPTER 1131, DEFINITIONS; CHAPTER 1198, CONDITIONAL USES OF PART 

ELEVEN PLANNING AND ZONING CODE 

           

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD:  Leader. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #40. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #40. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President.  

        #40 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 141/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #40 is adopted. Ordinance 

#41 please. 

 

O#41.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 142/2024 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 

ORDINACE NO. 55/77, AS AMENDED, KNOWN AS THE CITY OF CANTON 

ZONING ORDINANCE; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

     

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #41. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #41. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President.  

      #41 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 142/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: The motion carries and  Ordinance #41 has been adopted. Ordinance #42 

please. 

        

O#42.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 143/2024 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF PART OF OUTLOT 701 AND PART OF OUTLOT 

703; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 
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PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #42. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #42. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President.  

      #42 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 143/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and  Ordinance #42 is adopted. Ordinance 

#43 please. 

 

O#43.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 144/2024 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF PART OF OUTLOT 510 AND PART OF OUTLOT 

642; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #43. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #43. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

      #43 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 144/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and  Ordinance #43 is adopted. Ordinance 

#44 please. 

 

O#44. (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 145/2024 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 29494, 29495, AND  29496; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #44. 
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MEMBER GIAVASIS: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #44. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

      #44 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 145/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and  Ordinance #44 has been adopted. 

Ordinance #45 please. 

 

O#45. (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 146/2024 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOTS 22052 AND 22053; AND DECLARING THE 

SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #45. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #45. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

      #45 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 146/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #45 is adopted. Ordinance 

#46 please. 

 

O#46.  (3RD RDG) ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 147/2024 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE REPLAT OF LOT 3589 AND PART OF LOT 3590; AND 

DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. Leader Mariol. 

 

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adopt Ordinance #46. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adopt Ordinance #46. Are there any 

remarks? ...Hearing none, roll call vote, please.    
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NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

      #46 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 147/2024 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you. The motion carries and Ordinance #46 has been adopted. 

   

ANNOUNCEMENT OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are under the Announcement of Committee Meetings. Our next 

meeting date is August 12, 2024. Can’t believe that already. And Committee Meetings will start at 6:30 PM.  

  

MEMBER MORRIS: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes sir. 

 

MEMBER MORRIS: Finance… Finance and Annexation will meet August 12th at 6:30 PM. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Well thank you. A twofer for that. We got a twofer. Alright, we are now 

under Miscellaneous Business. 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: We are now under Miscellaneous Business. And is there any Miscellaneous 

Business that anyone in the body wants to bring… up?  

 

MEMBER CHRIS SMITH: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes ma’am. 

 

MEMBER CHRIS SMITH: Uh… I failed to uh… mentioned earlier that we should have had a moment of 

silence for Ms. Ida. Could we have that now, because Ms. Ida was not only uh… concerned about African 

Americans, she was concerned about all the people. And she did everything that she could to make them 

comfortable. She was uh… a motivator, she was an enthusiast person. She didn’t stop until she got things done. 

And she’s truly going to be missed. Not only just in this Council, but in the City of Canton period. So, could we 

have that moment of silence please, for Ms. Ida? 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Absolutely. A moment of silence for Ms. Ida Ross Freeman please. If you 

could all bow your heads. 

 

*Moment of Silence* 
 

MEMBER CHRIS SMITH: Thank you so very much and please keep her family in prayer. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you very much, Member Smith. Does anybody else have anything 

they would like to bring up in Miscellaneous Business. 

 

MEMBER SCAGLIONE: Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Yes, Mr. Scaglione. 
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MEMBER SCAGLIONE: Maybe if I could, I just wanted to… share about an unfortunate incident that 

happened real close to where I live. Uh… there was a fire that broke out in a garage that jarred out of our house 

by the explosion, but I just wanted to take time to relay the thanks from the residents right in front of that 

property. As we were going door to door to make sure people were safe, it was noted that the first fire engine 

arrived in about two and a half minutes. And within ten minutes there were… four… or two engine ladder 

trucks, two full complement of crews that addressed that fire. I know sometimes we think maybe things take 

longer than they maybe actually do, but I just want to have the Safety Director let Canton Fire know they did a 

heck of a job and their quick response times were very much appreciated by the residents.  

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you very much. Is there any other Miscellaneous Business that 

anyone would like to bring before the body? If not… Leader Mariol. 

  

MEMBER MARIOL: Madam President, I move we adjourn. 

 

MEMBER BABCOCK: Second. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: It’s been moved and seconded to adjourn. Madam Clerk, roll call vote, 

please, 

 

NO REMARKS        ROLL CALL 10 YEAS, 0 NAYS 

 

CLERK WOOD: Ten yeas, Madam President. 

 

PRESIDENT BATES AYLWARD: Thank you, Madam Clerk. (Gavel falls) This meeting is adjourned.  

 

ADJOURNMENT TIME: 8:07 PM 

 

ATTEST:    APPROVED:  

JILL M. WOOD  KRISTEN BATES ALYWARD 

CLERK OF COUNCIL                                          PRESIDENT 


